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November 30, 2010

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Neptune City School District
Monmouth County, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Neptune City School District (District)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of
the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data
presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of
the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s
financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section begins with the Independent
Auditors’ Report and includes the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial
Statements and Notes providing an overview of the School District’s financial position and operating
results, and other schedules providing detailed budgetary information. The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The
District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single
Audit Act of 1984 and the US Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single
Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Information related to this
single audit, including the auditor’s report on the internal control structure and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and findings and questioned costs are included in the single audit
section of this report.



1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

Neptune City School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
GASB as established by NCGA Statement No. 14. All funds and account groups of the District are
included in this report. The Neptune City Board of Education and its school constitute the District’s
reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 8.
These include regular as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The District has a
sending-receiving relationship with Neptune Township School District for grades 9-12 that includes
regular, vocational and special education for handicapped youngsters. Other opportunities available to
high school students are Red Bank Regional High School for Performing Arts, Marine Academy of
Science and Technology (MAST), High Technology High School, Academy of Allied Health and
Science, Communications High School and Bio-technology High School.

The District completed the 2009-2010 fiscal year with an average daily enrollment of 398 students,
which is seven students more than the previous year’s average daily enrollment. The following details

the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last five years.

Average Daily Enrollment (K-8)

Fiscal Year Average Daily Enrollment Percent Change
2010 398 1.8%
2009 391 0.5%
2008 393 1.0%
2007 389 4.2%
2006 406 2.9%

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

The Borough of Neptune City is located in the southeastern quadrant of Monmouth County and is
comprised of 576 acres or approximately .9 square miles. The community is considered fully
developed and is predominantly residential.

3) MAJOR INITIATIVES:

Free and appropriate public education for all children is a cornerstone of a democratic society that
values the worth and dignity of each individual. The primary goal of the Neptune City School District
is to offer educational opportunities to each young person that will enable him/her to function
politically, economically and socially in a fast changing complex world. To achieve this goal, the
District provides a planned program of learning that incorporates lessons and experiences, both in and
out of the classroom, into the curriculum. The District appreciates the need for continuous
improvement of the instructional program and will strive relentlessly to provide an educational system
that assists every pupil to reach his/her potential.

Through the utilization of modern technology and scientific advancements in today’s world, the
students have been afforded many opportunities. The integration of technology into the curriculum is
being emphasized and achieved with the addition of a full time technology coordinator. In addition, all
classrooms have broadband access to the internet, both wired and wireless to enhance the curriculum.
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The District has begun a program to educate its students with special needs in the least restrictive
environment, their resident district. In keeping with that philosophy, the District has expanded a Pre-
school handicapped class.

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that
an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic
evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length
budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final
budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line
item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of
fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations
of fund balance at June 30, 2010

6 UNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District’s accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is
organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in
“Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.



7) DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

At June 30, 2010, the District had outstanding debt of $8,720,000.

8) CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in “Notes to the
Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.
The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

9) RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability, hazard and
theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

10) OTHER INFORMATION:

A) Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Alvino and Shechter, CPAs,
was selected by the Board’s audit committee. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, as
amended by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and the related OMB Circular A-133 and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04. The auditor’s report on the general purpose financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this
report. The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit
section of this report.

11) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Neptune City School Board for their
concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and
thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation.
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

FZois Gt © (il Y

Thomas Campbell William Folk
Chief School Administrator Board Secretary/Business Administrator



SUBIPO}SN)

SOIUOJA] [00]0S
JO 1omsea1],

A1e)2109Q pIeog
JI01BIISTUTIUPY SSauIsng]

RELEN
suryoea ],

JuapusjuLadng

Kaurony

10upny

NOILVONdT 40 uvod

LAVHO TYNOILLVZINVOHO

NOLLVO(dH 40 MAVOd ALID ANNLJIAN




NEPTUNE CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION

ROSTER OF OFFICIALS

JUNE 30, 2010

Members of the Board of Education

Brian Sullivan - President

Edmond A. Zakerowski - Vice President

Lisa Frostick

Michael Pondaco

Anthony Susino

Robert R. Burr, Jr.

Christine Oppegaard

Angela Rust

Corlies Chong

Other Officials

Thomas Campbell- Chief School Administrator
William Folk - Board Secretary/School Business Administrator
Mary Sapp - Treasurer

Sanford D. Brown, Esq. - Solicitor

Term
Expires

2013
2011
2013
2013
2011
2011
2012
2012

2012



FINANCIAL SECTION




NEPTUNE CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION

CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS

AUDIT FIRM

Allen B. Shechter, CPA, RMA, PSA
Alvino & Shechter, L.L.C.
110 Fortunato Place
Neptune, NJ 07753

ATTORNEY

Sanford D. Brown
Brown & Connelly, L.L.C.
1127 Hwy. 35
Ocean Township, NJ 07712

OFFICIAL DEPOSITORIES

Bank of America
522 Main Street .
Bradley Beach, NJ 07720

Investor Savings Bank
Highway 71
Spring Lake Heights, NJ 07762

Central Jersey Bank, N.A.
3636 State Hwy. #33
Long Branch, NJ 07740



ALVINO & SHECHTER, L.L.C.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Neptune City School District
County of Monmouth, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Neptune City School District in
the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Neptune City Board of Education's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit

provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and each major fund, of the Neptune City Board of Education,
in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 29, 2010 on our
consideration of the Neptune City Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in

assessing the results of our audit.

The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 10 through 16 and 42 through
49 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

8



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Neptune City Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory section, and other
supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual
fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid respectively, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Lcense ublic Scol Acountam
No. 2183
Alvino & Shechter, L.L.C.

November 29, 2010
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NEPTUNE CITY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
NEPTUNE CITY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

(Unaudited)

The discussion and analysis of the Neptune City Public School District’s financial performance provides an
overall review of the school district’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The intent of
this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District’s financial performance as a whole; readers should
also review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance their understanding of

the School District’s financial performance.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is a new element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 — Basic
Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments issued in
June 1999. Certain comparative information between the current year (2009-2010) and the prior year (2008-
2009) is required to be presented in the MD&A.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for the 2009-2010 fiscal year are as follows:

In total, net assets decreased $322,174 primarily due to State Aid being reduced due to excess
accumulation of fund balance.

General revenues were $7,219,966 which represents 93.9% of revenues for the year. Program specific
revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions accounted for $470,187
or 6.1% of total revenues of $7,690,153.

The School District had $8,012,326 in expenses and only $452,560 were offset by program specific
charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily taxes and State of New Jersey
and Federal Aid) of $7,219,966 were adequate to provide for these programs.

The General Fund had $6,554,950 in revenues and $7,066,109 in expenditures. The General Fund’s
balance decreased $511,159 from June 2009. This decrease was anticipated by the Board of Education.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These statements
are organized so the reader can understand the Neptune City Public School District as a financial whole, an
entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at the specific
financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the whole
School District, presenting both an aggregate view of the School District’s finances and a longer —term view of
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those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The
fund financial statements also look at the School District’s most significant funds with all other non-major funds
presented in total in one column. In the case of Neptune City Public School District,

General Fund is by far the most significant fund.

Reporting the School District as a Whole
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs and
activities, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the question,
“How did we do financially during the 2009-2010 fiscal year?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual
basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis of accounting
takes into account, all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net assets and changes in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, the financial positions of the
School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, some
financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the School District’s property tax base, current laws in
New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two distinct
kinds of activities:

Governmental activities — All of the School District’s programs and services are reported here including,
but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil
transportation and extracurricular activities.

Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover all
the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service Enterprise Fund is reported as a

business activity.
Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the School District’s major funds begins on page 19. Fund financial reports provide detailed
information about the School District’s funds. The School District uses many funds to account for a multitude
of financial transactions. The School District’s governmental funds are the General Fund, Special revenue Fund
and Capital Projects Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and
out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed

11



short-term view of the School District’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs, The relationship (or differences) between
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and the
governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, those statements
are essentially the same.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
District-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages to of

this report.
The School District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Net Assets
may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.

The District’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of
activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the
depreciation of capital assets.

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District’s net assets for 2010 and 20009.

Table 1
Net Assets
2010 2009

Assets

Current and Other Assets $2,195,068 $2,764,055
Capital Assets, Net $10.171.476 $10.091.855
Total Assets $12,366,544 $12,855.910
Liabilities

Current Liabilities $491,243 $668,310
Long-Term Liabilities $8.822.610 $8.812.735
Total Liabilities $9,313,853 $9.481,045
Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $1,473,094 $130,557
Restricted $1,404,602 $1,766,766
Unrestricted $174.996 $1.477.542
Total Net Assets $3,052,692 $3,374,865

12



Table 2 shows the changes in net assets for the fiscal years 2010 and 2009.

Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues
Property Taxes
Grants and Entitlements
Other
Total Revenues

Program Expenses
Instruction
Support Services

Pupils and Instructional Staff

General Administration, School Administration,
Business Operations and Maintenance of Facilities

Pupil Transportation
Food Service

Other

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets Before Other Items

Other Decrease
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

13

2010

$75,807
$394,380
$0

$4.,980,627
$2,197,984

$41.355
$7.690.153

$3.242,642

$3.083.842

$925,983
$264,153
$133,149
$362.557
$8.012.326

($322,173)

$0
(8322.173)

009

$70.381
$63,679
$0

$4,657.278
$2.871.884

$135.705
$7.798.927

$2,972,306

$3.,246,128

$896,811
$302,395
$129,069
$376.996

$7.923.705

($124.778)

$0
($124.778)



Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the need to annually seek voter approval for the
School District operations. Property taxes made up 69 percent of revenues for governmental activities for the
Neptune City Public School District for the fiscal year 2010. Federal and state grants accounted for another

30.4 percent of revenues.

Program expenses include instruction that comprises 39.4 percent of the total expenses. Support services
comprise 55.8 percent of total expenses.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants offsetting
those services for the year ended June 30, 2010. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of
services. The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these

functions

Table 3
Total Cost of Net Cost of Total Cost of
Services Services Services
2010 2010 2009

Instruction 3,242,642 2,977,532 2,972,306
Support Services

Pupils and Instructional Staff 3,083,842 3.051,900 3,246,128

General Administration, School
Administration, Business Operations and
Maintenance of Facilities 925,983 903.624 896,811

Pupil Transportation 264,153 264,153 302,395
Food Service 133,149 (17,626) 129,069
Other 362.557 362.557 376.996
Total Expenses 8.012.326 7.542.140 7.923.705

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction between
teacher and student.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and process of
teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration and central services include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the district.

Maintenance of facilities activities involves keeping the school grounds, buildings and equipment in an
effective working condition.
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Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as well as
to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

The dependence upon tax revenues is apparent. The community, as a whole, is the primary support for the
Neptune City Public School District.

The School District’s Funds

Information about the School District’s governmental funds starts on page 19. These funds are accounted for
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds had total revenues of $7,539,297 and

expenditures of $8,302,874.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Board’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $1,804,116. Of this fund balance, $400,498 is unreserved which is available for spending at the Board’s
discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for spending because it
has already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period ($6,472), 2) for
capital reserve ($11,068), 3) for excess surplus ($717,793), 4) for excess surplus designated for subsequent
year’s expenditures ($568,285), and 5) for tuition reserve ($100,000). Unreserved general fund balance

represents 4.8% of total general fund expenditures.
General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District’s budget is prepared according to the law of the State of New Jersey, and is based on
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrance. The most
significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.

During the course of the fiscal 2010 year, the School District amended its General Fund budget as needed. The
School District uses program based budgeting and the budgeting systems designed to tightly control total
program budgets but provide flexibility for program management. Revisions in the budget were made to
recognize revenues and expenditures that were not anticipated and to prevent over expenditures in specific

expense accounts.
Capital Assets

At the end of the 2010 fiscal year, the School District had $10,171,977 invested in buildings, furniture and
equipment and vehicles. Table 4 shows fiscal 2010 balances.

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30
2010 2009
Land 30,000 30,000
Construction in Progress 10,129,785 10,048,388
Buildings and Improvements 7,525 9,654
Machinery and Equipment 4,167 4,105
Trucks 500 500
Totals 10.171.977 10.092.647
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Debt Administration

At June 30, 2010, the School District had $8,822,610 as outstanding debt. This amount consisted of
compensated absences ($102,610) and bonds payable ($8,720,000).

As of June 30, 2010, the School District’s legal debt margin was $8,507,778. For more detailed information,
please refer to the Noftes to the Financial Statements.

For the Future

The Neptune City Public School District is in good financial condition presently. The Borough of Neptune City
is primarily a residential community, thus the burden is on the homeowner to fund the taxes needed to operate
the school. Other funding sources have increased minimally and future finances will be with challenges.

The Borough of Neptune City has designated an area in the Eastern section of the Borough as in need of
redevelopment. This may affect the School District, however, such effect cannot be accurately projected at this

time.

In conclusion, the Neptune City Public School District has committed itself to financial excellence for many
years. The School District plans to continue its system of sound financial planning, budgeting and internal

controls to meet the challenges of the future.
Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the School District’s finances and to show the School District’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact William Folk,
School Business Administrator/Board Secretary at Neptune City Board of Education, 210 West Sylvania

Avenue, Neptune City, NJ 07753.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the District.

These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.




NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net
Inventory
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Capital Reserve Account - Cash
Deferred Bond Issuance Costs - Net
Capital Assets, Net (Note 5):

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable

Other Payable

Accrued Interest

Deferred Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities (Note 6):
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted for:
Debt Service
Other Purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Statement of Net Assets

June 30,2010

Governmental
_Activities

499,362.23
1,108,137.99
433,404.08
.00

.00

56,895.57
11,067.97
17,203.75
10.169.886.15

12.295.957.74

254,416.56
25,445.96
165,262.96
24,889.32

368,225.00
8.454.384.56

9.292.624.36

1,471,503.33
7,455.83
1,397,146.04
_127.228.18

$_3.003.333.38
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Business-Type

Exhibit A-1

Activities Total
48,055.03 547.417.26
.00 1,108.137.99
18,083.24 451,487.32
2,858.17 2,858.17
.00 .00
.00 56,895.57
.00 11,067.97
.00 17,203.75
_1.590.31 10.171.476.46
70.586.75 12.366.544.49
21,228.30 275,644.86
.00 25,445.96
.00 165,262.96
.00 24,889.32
.00 368,225.00
.00 8.454.384.56
21.228.30 9313.852.66
1,590.31 1,473,093.64
.00 7.455.83
.00 1,397,146.04
47.768.14 174.996.32
49.358.45 3.052.691.83

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual fund in a format
that segregates information fund type.




NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Due from Other Funds
Receivables from Other Governments
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Interfunds Payable

Payable to State Government

Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserve for:
Encumbrances
Capital Reserve Account
Tuition Reserve
Excess Surplus - Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Excess Surplus
Unreserved:
Designated for Subsequent Year’s
Expenditures
Unreserved, Reported In:
General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Debt Service Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010

Exhibit B-1

Net Assets of Government Funds

19

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported as liabilities in the funds. (See Note 6)

The costs associated with the issuance of bonds are expended
in the governmental funds in the year the bonds are issued but
are capitalized on the statement of net assets. The bond issuance
costs are $21,617.18 and the accumulated amortization is $4,413.43
(See Note 18).

Interest is accrued on outstanding debt in the government-wide
financial statements, whereas in the governmental fund financial
statements, an interest expenditure is reported when due.

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue  Projects Service  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
491,906.40 .00 .00 7,455.83 499.362.23
1,108,137.99 .00 56,895.57 00 1,165,033.56
233,901.27 .00 .00 .00 233,901.27
103,288.08 330,116.00 .00 .00 433,404.08
11.067.97 .00 .00 .00 11.067.97
$1.948.301.71 330.116.00 56.895.57 7.455.83 2.342.769.11
188,206.80  66,209.76 .00 .00 254,416.56
20,330.31 237,301.27 .00 .00 257,631.58
.00 1,715.65 .00 .00 1,715.65
.00 _24.889.32 .00 .00 24.889.32
208.537.11 330.116.00 .00 .00 538.653.11
6,472.29 .00 .00 .00 6,472.29
11,067.97 .00 .00 .00 11,067.97
100,000.00 .00 .00 .00 100,000.00
568,284.73 .00 .00 .00 568,284.73
717,793.3 .00 .00 .00 717,793.34
190,928.27 .00 .00 .00 190,928.27
145,218.00 .00 .00 .00 145,218.00
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00
.00 .00 .00 7,455.83 7,455.83
.00 .00 56.895.57 .00 56.895.57
1.739.764.60 .00 56.895.57 7.455.83 1,804,116.00
$1.948.301.71 330.116.00 56.895.57 7.455.83
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds. The cost of the assets is
$11,827,640.62 and the accumulated depreciation is
$1,657,754.47 (See Note 5). 10.169.886.15

(8,822.609.56)

17,203.75

(165.262.96)

$3.003.3233.38



Exhibit B-2
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy 4,646,327.00 .00 .00 334,300.00 4,980,627.00
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve 41.48 .00 .00 .00 41.48
Interest Earned on Investments 16,148.28 .00 1,558.98 .00 17,707.26
Miscellaneous 23.526.66 .00 .00 .00 23,526.66
Total - Local Sources 4,686,043.42 .00 1,558.98 334,300.00 5,021,902.40
State Sources 1,583,068.85 .00 .00 210,733.00 1,793,801.85
Federal Sources 285.838.00 437.755.18 .00 .00 723,593.18
Total Revenues 6.554.950.27 437.755.18 1.558.98 545.033.00 7.539.297.43
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Regular Instruction 1,668,878.29 281,439.18 .00 .00 1,950,317.47
Special Education Instruction 274,412.70 .00 .00 .00 274,412.70
Other Special Instruction 122,620.99 .00 .00 .00 122,620.99
Other Instruction 46,771.43 .00 .00 .00 46,771.43
Support Services:
Tuition 2,427,076.13 .00 .00 .00 2,427,076.13
Student & Instruction Related Services 380,148.65 156,316.00 .00 .00 536,464.65
General Administration 194,561.26 .00 .00 .00 194,561.26
School Administrative Services 92,643.50 .00 .00 .00 92,643.50
Central Services 122,361.45 .00 .00 .00 122,361.45
Administration Information Technology 16,464.00 .00 .00 .00 16,464.00
Plant Operations and Maintenance 333,558.61 .00 .00 .00 333,558.61
Pupil Transportation 264,152.90 .00 .00 .00 264,152.90
Employee Benefits 1,122,459.47 .00 .00 .00 1,122,459.47
Debt Service:
Principal .00 .00 .00 350,000.00 350,000.00
Interest and Other Charges .00 .00 .00 367,612.57 367,612.57
Capital Outlay .00 .00 81.397.02 .00 81.397.02
Total Expenditures 7.066.109.38 437.755.18 81.397.02 717.612.57 8.302.874.15
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (511.159.11) .00 (79.838.04) (172.579.57) _ (763.576.72)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In .00 .00 .00 1,558.98 1,558.98
Transfers Out (.00) (.00) (1.558.98) (.00) (1.558.98)
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses .00 .00 (1.558.98)  1.558.98 .00
Net Change in Fund Balances (511,159.11) .00 (81,397.02) (171,020.59)  (763,576.72)
Fund Balance - July 1 2.250.923.71 (.00) 138.292.59 178.476.42 2.567.692.72
Fund Balance - June 30 $1.739.764.60 .00 56.895.57 7.455.83 1.804.116.00

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-3
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2) (763,576.72)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, on the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded

depreciation in the current fiscal year.

Depreciation Expense (3,365.95)
Capital Outlay 81.397.02 78,031.07

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not

reported in the statement of activities. 350,000.00
In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences

(vacation and sick pay) are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the

governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are reported in the amount

of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount,

the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation; when the paid amount exceeds the

earned amount, the difference is an addition to the reconciliation. (9,875.00)
Interest is accrued on outstanding debt in the government-wide financial statements,

whereas in the fund financial statements an interest expenditure is reported when due. 6,621.74
Bond issuance costs are expenditures in the fund financial statements when debt is

issued but, it is amortized over the term of the bond in the government-wide financial

statements. (1.080.84)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $_(339.879.75)

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-4
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statements of Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30,2010

Food Service Fund

ASSETS:

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 48,055.03
Accounts Receivable:
State 243.92
Federal 4,971.77
Interfund 11,804.75
Other 1,062.80
Inventories 2.858.17
Total Current Assets 68.996.44
Noncurrent Assets:
Equipment 54,737.87

Less Accumulated Depreciation

(53.147.56)

Total Noncurrent Assets 1.590.31
Total Assets $ 70.586.75
LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 21,228.30
Interfund Payable .00

Total Current Liabilities 21.228.30
NET ASSETS:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,590.31

Unrestricted 47.768.14
Total Net Assets $ 49.358.45

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-5
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

Food Service Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs 43,808.65
Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs 17,473.05
Satellite Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs 14,525.37
Total Operating Revenues 75.807.07
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Food Service Costs:
Cost of Food 58,609.55
Wages 41,616.30
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 6,543.86
Insurance 5,525.87
Supplies . 5,826.53
Uniforms and Laundry 363.22
Miscellaneous 4,661.11
Management Fee 8.456.00
131,602.44
Other Expenses:
Repairs 1,250.95
Check Printing 38.00
Depreciation 257.92
Total Operating Expenses 133.149.31
Operating Loss (57.342.24)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES:
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program 2,647.98
State School Breakfast Program 447.60
Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program 55,975.49
School Breakfast Program 6,743.04
Food Distribution Program 9,154.58
Interest Earnings 79.75
Total Non-Operating Revenues 75.048.44
Income Before Contributions and Transfers 17,706.20
Operating Transfer In: Board Contribution .00
Change in Net Assets 17,706.20
Total Net Assets - July 1 31.652.25
Total Net Assets - June 30 $.49.358.45

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from Daily and Satellite Sales
Payments to Food Service Vendor
Payments for Other Expenses

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
State Reimbursements
Federal Reimbursements
Interfunds
Board Contribution
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Equipment

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest on Investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:

Operating Loss

Depreciation

Donated Commodities Received During the Year
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
(Increase) Decrease in Other Accounts Receivable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

Exhibit B-6

Food Service Fund

77,283.33
(108,741.36)
(1.288.95)
(32.746.98)

3,333.06

67,019.18

00

.00

70.352.24

(1.056.25)
(1.056.25)

79.75
79.75
36,628.76
11.426.27

$_48.055.03

(57.342.24)

257.92
9,154.58

(294.07)
14,000.57
1.476.26

24.595.26

$(32.746.98)

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:

Payroll Service Vendor
Interfunds

Total Assets
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Payroll Deductions and
Withholdings
Due to Student Groups
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30,2010

Held in Trust for Unemployment

Claims and Other Purposes

Total Net Assets

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Unemployment
Compensation
Trust

134,424 .92
1,721.86
6.464.11

142.610.89

.00

.00
.00

.00

142.610.89

$142.610.89

Exhibit B-7

Agency
Fund

8,522.87
00
5.461.45

13.984.32

500.00

01

13.48431

$13.984.32



Exhibit B-8
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Plan Member 4,794.10
Other -Budget Contributions 45.000.00
Total Contributions 49.794.10
Investment Earnings:
Interest 364.89
Net Investment Earnings 364.89
Total Additions 50.158.99
DEDUCTIONS:
Unemployment Claims 15.646.90
Total Deductions 15.646.90
Change in Net Assets 34,512.09
Net Assets - July 1 108.098.80
Net Assets - June 30 $142.610.89

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Neptune City School District (District) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied
to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board's accounting
policies are described below.

A. Description of the District and Reporting Entity:

The Neptune City School District is a Type II district located in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey. As a Type
II District, the School District functions independently through a Board of Education. The board is comprised of nine
members elected to three year-terms. The purpose of the District is to educate students in grades K-8. The Neptune City
School District had an approximate enrollment at June 30, 2010 of 398 students.

In evaluating how to define the governmental reporting entity, the District follows the provisions of GASB Statement No.
14, The Financial Reporting Entity, under which the financial statements include all organizations, activities, functions, and
component units for which the District is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment
of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and either (1) the District’s ability to impose its will over the component
unit, or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the
District. On this basis, the District’s financial reporting entity has no component units.

In the fiscal year 2003/2004, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and
Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments (GASB Statement No. 34), GASB Statement
37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management 's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus
which provides additional guidance for the implementation of GASB Statement 34, and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain
Financial Statement Disclosures which changes note disclosure requirements for governmental entities.

GASB Statement No. 34 established a new financial reporting model for state and local governments that included the
addition of management’s discussion and analysis, district-wide financial statements, required supplementary information
and the elimination of the effects of internal service activities and the use of account groups to the already required fund

financial statements and notes.

The GASB determined that fund accounting has and will continue to be essential in helping governments to achieve fiscal
accountability and should, therefore, be retained. The GASB also determined that District-Wide financial statements are
needed to allow user’s of financial reports to assess a government’s operational accountability. The new GASB model
integrates fund-based financial reporting and district-wide financial reporting as complementary components of a single
comprehensive financial reporting model.

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting:

The School District’s basic financial statements consist of District-Wide statements, including a statement of net assets and
a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Basis of Presentation

District-Wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the District
as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between
the governmental and business-type activity of the District. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part

by fees charged to external parties.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (Cont’d):

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type activity of the School
District at fiscal year end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the business-type activity of the District and for each function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses
are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs
and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function or business
segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues .of the School District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain School
District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance.
The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate
statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The New Jersey Department
of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in
accordance with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds
as major is important for public interest and to promote consistency among district financial reporting models.

The District reports the following governmental funds:

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account for all expendable
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for
vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment which are classified in the capital outlay subfund.

As required by the NJDOE, the District includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. GAAP as it pertains to
governmental entities states that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. Resources
for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes, and
appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land,
existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and
the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by Board
resolution.

Special Revenue Fund: The special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State
and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, debt service or the enterprise funds) and local
appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund: The capital projects fund is used to account for all financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial
resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a separate
question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund: The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment
of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and improvement

programs.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (Cont’d):

The District reports the following proprietary fund:

Enterprise (Food Service) Fund: The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to the
Board’s cafeteria operations. The food service fund is utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (ie. expenses including
depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or
recovered primarily through user charges.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund type:

Fiduciary Funds: The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the District on behalf of others and
includes the Student Activities Fund, Payroll Agency Fund and Unemployment Compensation Insurance Trust Fund.

Basic of Accounting:

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial
statements.

District-Wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The District-Wide financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting; the enterprise fund
and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting
arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus
expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as under New Jersey State Statute a municipality
is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end
of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since
the revenue is both measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment
schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the District follow FASB Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research

Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

C. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue, and debt service funds.
The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and are voted upon at the annual school election on the third
Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting except for the special revenue fund
as described later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item
accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts

referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)!1.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
C. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Cont’d):

All budget amendments/transfers must be approved by School Board resolution. All budget amounts presented in the
accompanying supplementary information reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted
for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and GAAP with the
exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the
special revenue fund as presented in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information. Encumbrance accounting is also
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations
lapse at year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records

are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity:

Cash. Cash Equivalents. and Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest. The Board classifies certificates of deposit which have
maturity dates of less than twelve months from date of purchase as investments and are stated at cost.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they may invest in.
New Jersey Statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school
districts. Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA
was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New

Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The statute requires
that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the
Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks
the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value of at least
equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units.
If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to
pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.

Interfund Transactions:

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the District-Wide statements are reported in the same
manner as general revenues. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are
reported as Interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and
as non-operating revenues/expenses in the enterprise fund. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements.

On fund financial statements, short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables. These amounts
are eliminated in the statement of net assets, except for amounts due between governmental and business-type activities or

governmental and agency funds, which are presented as internal balances.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity (Cont’d):

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts:

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered collectible.

Inventories:

Inventory purchases, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are recorded as expenditures during the year of
purchase. Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO)

method.

Capital Assets:

The District has established a formal system of accounting for its capital assets. Purchased or constructed capital assets
are reported at cost. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The general
fixed assets acquired or constructed prior to June 30, 1992 are valued at cost based on historical records or through
estimation procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs is not
capitalized. The School District does not possess any infrastructure. The capitalization threshold used by school districts

in the State of New Jersey is $2,000.00.

All reported capital assets except for land and construction in progress are depreciated. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method under the half-year convention over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Land Improvements 20
Office & Computer Equipment 5
Furniture 10
Other Equipment 10
Trucks 5

In the fund financial statements, fixed assets used in government fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Fixed assets are not capitalized and related depreciation is not

reported in the fund financial statements.

Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash that has been received but not yet earned.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations:

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the District-Wide financial statements. In
general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial

statements when due.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity (Cont’d):

Net Assets:

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the School District or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The School District’s policy is to first apply
restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are

available.

Fund Balance Reserves:

The School District reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific future use or which
do not represent available expendable resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation or expenditure.
Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion which is available for appropriation in future periods. A fund balance
reserve has been established for encumbrances.

Revenues - Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded
on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year
in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means the resources will be collected within the
current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal
year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fiscal year-end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include
property taxes, income taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which
the income is earned. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year
when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which
the School District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which
the resources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from
nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available at fiscal
year-end: property taxes available as an advance, interest and tuition.

Operating Revenue and Expenses:

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the enterprise fund. For the
School District, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the
service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

Management Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could

differ from those estimates.
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The District is governed by the deposit and investment limitations of New Jersey state law. The deposits and investments
held at June 30, 2010, and reported at fair value, are as follows:

Carrying
Type Rating Maturities Value
Deposits:
Demand deposits 510,430.20
Investments:
Certificate of Deposit - Investor N/A 09/07/10 489,726.36
Savings Bank
Certificate of Deposit - Central
Jersey Bank N/A 12/09/10 675.307.20
Total deposits and investments $1.675.463.76
Reconciliation of Statement of Net Assets
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents 510,430.20
Investments 1.165.033.56

$1.675.463.76

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits in financial institutions, reported as components of cash, cash equivalents, and

investments had a bank balance of $1,911,457.32 at June 30, 2010. Of the bank balance $750,000.00 was fully insured by
depository insurance and $1,161,457.32 was secured by a collateral pool held by the bank, but not in the District’s name,
as required by New Jersey statutes.

Investment Interest Rate Risk - The District has no formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means

of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. Maturities of investments held at June
30, 2010, are provided in the above schedule.

Investment Credit Risk - The District has no investment policy that limits its investment choices other than the limitation

of state law as follows:

1.

2%
3.

7.

8.

Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United States of

America;

Government money market mutual funds;

Any obligation that a federal agency or federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an act of Congress,
which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such
obligations bear a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other external factor.

Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units within which
the school district is located;

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397 days from the date of purchase, approved
by the Division of Investment in the Department of Treasury for investment by school district;

Local governments investment pools;

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281;
or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - The District places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.

At June 30, 2010, the District’s investments are with Investors Savings Bank and Central Jersey Bank as shown above.
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NOTE 3. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Borough of Neptune City Board of Education by inclusion of $1.00 on
September 26, 2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The
capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range Facilities
Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve
by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end
of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both.. A district may also appropriate
additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time
or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.4. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6:23A-5.1(d) 7, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects

in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2010 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2009 $11,065.68
Interest earnings 41.48
Deposits
Approved at April 2009 election .00
Withdrawals '
Board resolution (.00)
Ending balance, June 30, 2010 $11.107.16

The June 30, 2010 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30, 2010 is $5,122,488.00.

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2010, consisted of interfund and intergovernmental accounts. All receivables are considered
collectible in full. A summary of the principal items of receivables follows:

Governmental District-Wide
Fund Financial Financial

Statements Statements
State Aid 103,288.08 103,532.00
Federal Aid 330,116.00 335,087.77
Interfunds .00 11,804.75
Other .00 1.062.80
Gross Receivables 433,404.08 451,487.32
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles .00 .00
Total Receivables, Net $433.404.08 451.487.32
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Beginning Transfers or Transfers or Ending
Balance  Additions Retirements Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land . 30,000.00 .00 .00 30,000.00
Construction in progress 10.048.387.98 81.397.02 .00 10.129.785.00
Total capital assets not being depreciated 10.078.387.98 81.397.02 .00 10.159.785.00
Capital assets being depreciated:
Site improvements 22,325.00 .00 .00 22,325.00
Building and building improvements 1,255,494 .95 .00 00 1,255,494.95
Machinery and equipment 385,035.67 .00 .00 385,035.67
Truck 5.000.00 .00 .00 5.000.00
Total capital assets being depreciated 1.667.855.62 .00 .00 _1.667.855.62
Total at historical cost 11.746.243.60 81.397.02 .00 11.827.640.62
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Site Improvements (22,325.00) (.00) .00 (22,325.00)
Building and improvements (1,245,840.71) (2,129.75) .00 (1,247,970.46)
Machinery and equipment (381,722.81) (736.20) .00 (382,459.01)
Truck (4.500.00) (500.00) .00 (5.000.00)
Total accumulated depreciation (1.654.388.52) (3.365.95) .00 (1.657.754.47)
Governmental activity capital assets, net $10.091.855.08 78.031.07 .00 10.169.886.15
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment 53,681.62 1,056.25 .00 54,737.87
Less accumulated depreciation (52.889.64) (257.92) .00 (53.147.56)
Enterprise fund capital assets, net $ 791.98 798.33 .00 1.590.31

Depreciation expense was charged to the following governmental programs:

Instruction 277.71
Support Services - Administration 1,367.04
Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services 1,236.20
Unallocated 485.00
Total $3.365.95

6. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through referendums. All bonds are
retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are general obligation
bonds.
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6. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS(CONT’D)

A. Long-Term Obligation Activity:

Change in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2010, are as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within

July 1, 2009 Increases Decreases June 30,2010 One Year

Compensated absences 92,734.56 10,575.00 (700.00) 102,609.56 8,225.00
Bonds 9.070.000.00 .00 (350,000.00) 8.720.000.00 360.000.00

$9.162.734.56 10.575.00  (350.700.00)  8.822.609.56 368.225.00

Government Activities

Principal
Issue Interest Date of Balance
Date Rates Maturity June 30,2010
Bonds Payable 06/01/2006  4.125% -4.200% 07/15/2026 8.720.000.00
Total Bonds $8.720.000.00
B. Debt Service Requirements:
Debt service requirements on serial bonds payable at June 30, 2010 are as follows:
Fiscal Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 360,000.00 352,968.75 712.,968.75
2012 375,000.00 337,809.38 712,809.38
2013-2017 2,130,000.00 1,437,937.51 3,567,937.51
2018-2022 2,620,000.00 050,156.26 3,570,156.26
2023-2027 3.235.000.00 347.493.73 3.582.493.73
$8.720.000.00 3.426.365.63 12.146.365.63

C. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued: The District had $543.00 authorized but not issued bonds at June 30, 2010.

NOTE 7. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund - Of the $1,739,764.60 General Fund fund balance at June 30,2010, $6,472.29 is reserved for encumbrances;
$100,000.00 has been legally reserved for tuition adjustment in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23-3.1 (f)(8); $717,793.34
is reserved as excess surplus in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7; $568,284.73 was reserved as excess surplus at June
30, 2009 and has been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2010: $11,067.97 has
been reserved in the Capital Reserve Account; $190,928.27 has been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for
the year ending June 30, 2011; and $145,218.00 is unreserved and undesignated.

NOTE 8. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004, c.73 (S1701), the designation for Reserved Fund Balance -
Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and
Financing Act of 1997 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal
year end of June 30, if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent
years’ budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2010 is $717,793.34.
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NOTE 9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Grant Programs:

The School District participates in federal awards and state financial assistance grant programs. These programs are subject
to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The School District is potentially liable for
expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware of any
material items of noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures.

NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees” Retirement
System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered by
the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code,
all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division
issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information
for the Public Employees’ Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained
by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) was established as of
January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-
employer plan with a special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State
of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing employers. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established as
of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical benefits
to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county, municipality,
school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a member of another state-administered
retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and
N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after
25 years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service are available at age 60 and are generally determined to be 1/60
of the final average salary for each year of service credit, as defined. Final average salary equals the average salary for the
final three years of service prior to retirement (or highest three years’ compensation if other than the final three years).
Members may seek early retirement after achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred retirement after
achieving eight to ten years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of the month after the member attains
normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provides for specified medical benefits for members who retire after achieving
25 years of qualified service, as defined, or under the disability provisions of the System.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2%
of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled

to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.



NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2010

NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS (CONT’D)

Significant Legislation - During the year ended June 30, 1997, legislation was enacted (Chapter 114, P.L. 1997) authorizing
the New Jersey Economic Development Authority to issue bonds, notes or other obligations for the purpose of financing,
in full or in part, the State of New Jersey's portion of the unfunded accrued liability under the State of New Jersey retirement
systems. Additional legislation enacted during the year ended June 30, 1998 (Chapter 115, P.L. 1997) changed the asset
valuation method from market related value to full-market value. This legislation also contained a provision to reduce the
employee contribution rate by 1/2 of 1% to 4.5% for calendar years 1998 and 1999, and to allow for a reduction in the
employee's rate after calendar year 1999, providing excess valuation assets are available. The legislation also provided that
the Districts’ normal contributions to the fund may be reduced based on the revaluation of assets. Due to recognition of
the bond proceeds and the change in asset valuation method as a result of enactment of Chapters 114 and 115, all unfunded
accrued liabilities were eliminated, except for the unfunded liability for local early retirement incentive benefits,
accordingly, the pension costs for TPAF and PERS were reduced.

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and N.J.S.A. 18:66,
and requires contributions by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may
be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provide for employee contributions of 5% of employees'
annual compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and

PERS.

The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits,
and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/10 34,933.00 100% 34,933.00
6/30/09 29,875.00 100% 29,875.00
6/30/08 21,981.60 100% 21,981.60

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF (Paid on-behalf of the District)

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/10 149.313 100% 0
6/30/09 143,443 100% 0
6/30/08 341,344 100% 0

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the State of New Jersey contributed $149,313.00 to the TPAF for normal and
post-retirement benefits on behalf of the District. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey
reimbursed the District $170,097.85 during the year ended June 30, 2010 for the employer's share of social security
contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries. This amount has been included in the general-
purpose financial statements, and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules as a
revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB 27.
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NOTE 11. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L. 1987, c¢. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachers’ Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after
accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law to eliminate the
funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension
plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State employees and retired educational
employees. As of June 30, 2009, there were 84,590 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these
benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c¢.62. Funding of post-retirement
medical premiums changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State made post-retirement (PRM) contributions of $1.38 billion for fiscal year 2009 and 3.22 million for fiscal year
2008.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c. 126, which provides free health benefits to members

of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years of
service. The State paid $116.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 13,320 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2009.

NOTE 12. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (sick leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable
to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee
is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees who are employed for ten months are entitled to ten paid sick leave days per fiscal school year. District
employees who are employed for twelve months are entitled to twelve paid sick leave days per fiscal school year. Unused
sick leave may be accumulated and carried forward to the subsequent years. Upon retirement and who have not less than
twenty (20) years of service in the District, the District shall pay the employee for unused sick leave in accordance with the
Districts’ agreements with the various employee unions.

The entire liability for compensated absences is reported in the District-Wide Statements of Net Assets.

NOTE 13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits participants to defer
a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

AXA Equitable
Siracusa Benefits Program
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NOTE 14. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability and surety
bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment
Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method™. Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse
the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the
State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of District contributions,
employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s expendable
trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Interest Earnings/

District Employee Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2009-2010 45,364.89 4,794.10 15,646.90 142,610.89
2008-2009 35,444.12 7,895.74 20,756.52 108.,098.80
2007-2008 35,517.42 6,699.08 15,906.08 85,515.46

NOTE 15. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES. PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund balances at June 30, 2010 consisted of the following individual fund receivable and payables:

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund:
Special Revenue Fund 233,901.27 .00
Unemployment Compensation Trust .00 6,464.11
Food Service Fund .00 11,804.75
Agency Fund .00 2,061.45
Special Revenue Fund:
General Fund .00 233,901.27
Agency Fund .00 3,400.00
Food Service Fund:
General Fund 11,804.75 .00
Unemployment Compensation Trust:
General Fund 6,464.11 .00
Agency Fund:
Special Revenue Fund 3,400.00 .00
General Fund 2.061.45 .00
$257.631.58 257.631.58

The general fund’s interfund payable to the unemployment compensation trust, food service fund, agency fund and the
special revenue fund’s interfund payable to the agency fund are reported as other payables on the District-Wide statement
of net assets. All balances are expected to be paid within one year. All of the interfunds represent short-term loans.

As of June 30, 2010, the District’s operating transfers consisted of the following:

$1.558.98 From the Capital Projects Fund to the Debt Service
Fund for interest income
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NOTE 16. INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2010 consisted of the following:

Food 2,230.82
Supplies 627.35
$2.858.17

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the Single Audit Law of 1984) is the
difference between market value and cost of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included as an item of
nonoperating revenue in the financial statements.

NOTE 17. DEFERRED BOND ISSUANCE COSTS

In governmental funds, debt issuance costs are recognized in the current period. For the District-Wide financial statements,
governmental activity debt issuance costs are amortized straight-line over the life of the specific bond, (20 years). The prior
year costs associated with the issuance of the general obligation bond amounted to $21,617.18. The amortization expense
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, amounted to $1,080.84, and the total accumulated amortization is $4,413.43.
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Exhibit C-1
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy 4,646,327.00 00  4,646,327.00 4,646,327.00 .00
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve Funds 300.00 .00 300.00 41.48 (258.52)
Miscellaneous 20.000.00 .00 20.000.00 39.674.94 19.674.94
Total - Local Sources 4.666.627.00 00 4.666.627.00 4.686.043.42 19.416.42
State Sources:
Equalization Aid 1,289.,497.00 (440,208.00) 849,289.00 849.289.00 .00
Transportation Aid 104,472.00 (36,565.00) 67,907.00 67,907.00 .00
Special Education Categorical Aid 313,061.00 (101,693.00) 211,368.00  211,368.00 .00
Security Aid 73,719.00 (25,802.00) 47.,917.00 47,917.00 .00
Adult Education Aid .00 .00 .00 4,771.00 4,771.00
Extraordinary Special Education Costs Aid .00 .00 .00 94,825.00 94,825.00
TPAF - Post Retirement Medical (On-
Behalf-Non-Budgeted) .00 .00 .00 141,765.00 141,765.00
Teacher’s Pension and Annuity Fund (On-
Behalf-Non-Budgeted) .00 .00 .00 7,548.00 7,548.00
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security
Contributions (Non-Budgeted) .00 .00 .00 170.097.85 170.097.85
Total - State Sources 1.780.749.00 (604.268.00) 1.176.481.00 1.595.487.85 419.006.85
Federal Sources:
Equalization Aid - ARRA ESF 275,185.00 .00 275,185.00 275,185.00 .00
Equalization Aid - ARRA GSF 10.653.00 .00 10.653.00 10.653.00 .00
Total Federal Sources 285.838.00 .00 285.838.00 285.838.00 .00
Total Revenues 6.733.214.00 (604.268.00) 6.128.946.00 6.567.369.27 438.423.27
EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:
Regular Programs - Instruction:
Kindergarten-Salaries of Teachers 129,400.00 .00 129.400.00 125,952.92 3,447.08
Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers 753,000.00 (5,800.00) 747,200.00 747,159.28 40.72
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers 619,000.00  (25,000.00) 594,000.00  588,069.05 5,930.95
Regular Programs - Home Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 3,388.78 1,611.22
Regular Programs - Undistributed
Instruction:
Other Salaries for Instruction 70,000.00 .00 70,000.00 69.864.05 135.95
Purchased Professional-Educational
Services 15,000.00 (11,600.00) 3,400.00 .00 3,400.00
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 28,000.00 4,000.00 32,000.00 30,974.81 1,025.19
General Supplies 120,000.00 (31,782.05) 88,217.95 84,575.95 3,642.00
Textbooks 65,000.00 (48,906.20) 16,093.80 7,805.95 8,287.85
Other Objects 25.000.00 (4.600.00) 20.400.00 11.087.50 9.312.50
Total Regular Programs - Instruction 1.829.400.00 (123.688.25) 1.705.711.75 1.668.878.29 _36.833.46
Special Education - Instruction
Learning and/or Language Disabilities - Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers .00 47,050.00 47.050.00 18,300.00 28,750.00
General Supplies .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
Total Learning and/or Language
Disabilities - Instruction: .00 47.050.00 47.050.00 18.300.00 _28.750.00

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original

and final.
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Exhibit C-1
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT (Continued)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Current Expense (Continued):

Resource Room/Resource Center - Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers 279,300.00  (53,050.00) 226,250.00 217,124.04 9,125.96
General Supplies 5.500.00 .00 5.500.00 332.41 5.167.59

Total Resource Room/Resource Center -

Instruction 284.800.00 (53.050.00) 231.750.00 217.456.45 14.293.55

Preschool Disabilities - Part-Time - Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers 23,900.00 4,000.00 27,900.00 21,356.25 6,543.75

Other Salaries for Instruction 12,100.00 5.000.00 17,100.00 17,100.00 .00

General Supplies 700.00 200.00 900.00 200.00 700.00
Total Preschool Disabilities - Part-Time -

Instruction 36.700.00 9.200.00 45.900.00 38.656.25 7.243.75
Total Special Education - Instruction 321.500.00 3.200.00  324.700.00 274.412.70  50.287.30
Basic Skills/Remedial - Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers 92,500.00 .00 92,500.00 68.434.31 24,065.69
General Supplies 4.000.00 1.000.00 5.000.00 1.000.00 4.000.00
Total Basic Skills/Remedial - Instruction 96.500.00 1.000.00 97.500.00 69.434.31 28.065.69

Bilingual Education - Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers 53,900.00 .00 53,900.00 52.668.72 1,231.28

General Supplies 2.000.00 .00 2.000.00 517.96 1.482.04
Total Bilingual Education - Instruction 55.900.00 .00 55.900.00 53.186.68 _2.713.32
School Sponsored Cocurricular

Activities - Instruction:

Salaries 16,500.00 .00 16,500.00 14,349.03 2,150.97

Supplies and Materials 3,500.00 1,000.00 4,500.00 996.26 3,503.74

Other Objects 1.300.00 .00 1.300.00 96.86 1.203.14
Total School Sponsored Cocurricular

Activities - Instruction 21.300.00 1.000.00 22.300.00 15.442.15 6.857.85
School Sponsored Cocurricular Athletics -

Instruction:

Salaries 22,000.00 .00 22,000.00 21,874.00 126.00
Purchased Services (300-500 series) 6,500.00 .00 6,500.00 5,733.00 767.00
Supplies and Materials 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 2,252.28  7,747.72
Other Objects 4.000.00 .00 4,000.00 1.470.00 2.530.00
Total School Sponsored Cocurricular
Athletics - Instruction 42.500.00 .00 42.500.00 31.329.28 11.170.72
Other Instruction Programs - Instruction
Before/After School Programs Instruction:
Salaries 12,000.00 .00 12,000.00 .00 12,000.00
Supplies and Materials .00 3.000.00 3.000.00 .00 3.000.00
Total Before/After School Programs -
Instruction 12.000.00 3.000.00 15.000.00 .00  15.000.00

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original
and final.
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Exhibit C-1

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT (Continued)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
Variance
Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Current Expense (Continued):
Community Services Programs/Operations:
Purchased Services (300-500 series) 2.000.00 _ (2.000.00) .00 .00 .00
Total Community Services Programs/
Operations 2.000.00 _ (2.000.00) .00 .00 .00

Total - Instruction and At-Risk Programs 2.381.100.00 (117.488.25) 2.263.611.75 2.112.683.41 150.928.34

Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction:
Tuition to Other LEAS Within the

State - Regular 1,306,426.00 77,603.30 1,384,029.30 1,255,291.10 128,738.20
Tuition to Other LEAS Within the

State - Special 96,876.00 1,001.84 97,877.84 95,960.95 1,916.89
Tuition to County Voc. School

District - Regular 100,250.00 .00 100,250.00  100,187.50 62.50
Tuition to County Voc. School

District - Special 25,000.00 10,250.00 35,250.00 34,775.00 475.00
Tuition to CSSD & Regional

Day Schools 80,000.00  5,700.00 85,700.00 77,759.20 7,940.80
Tuition to Private Schools for the

Disabled Within State 912,061.00 .00 912,061.00  840,331.38 71,729.62
Tuition - State Facilities 22.771.00 .00 22.771.00 22.771.00 .00

Total Undistributed Expenditures -

Instruction 2.543.384.00 _94.555.14 2.637.939.14 2.427.076.13 210.863.01

Undistributed Expenditures - Attendance
and Social Work Services:

Salaries 21,400.00 20.00 21,420.00 21,413.20 6.80
Purchased Professional and Technical
Services 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00
Supplies and Materials 250.00 230.00 480.00 250.00 230.00
Other Objects 300.00 .00 300.00 .00 300.00
Total Undistributed Expenditures -
Attendance and Social Work Services 25.950.00 250.00 26.200.00 21.663.20 4.536.80

Undistributed Expenditures -
Health Services:

Salaries 46,800.00 (301.00) 46,499.00 46,174.00 325.00
Purchased Professional and
Technical Services 6,500.00 .00 6,500.00 6,500.00 .00
Supplies and Materials 3,500.00 (800.00) 2,700.00 2,375.33 324.67
Other Objects 800.00 .00 800.00 135.00 665.00
Total Undistributed Expenditures -
Health Services 57.600.00 _(1.101.00) 56.499.00 55.184.33 1.314.67

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original
and final.
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Exhibit C-1
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT (Continued)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

Variance
Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Current Expense (Continued):
Undistributed Expenditures -Speech/
Occupational Therapy, Physical Therapy &
Related Services:
Salaries 65,300.00 2,000.00 67,300.00 66,221.30 1,078.70
Purchased Professional and Educational
Services 34,000.00 12,800.00 46,800.00 46,780.00 20.00
Supplies and Materials 1.200.00 200.00 1.400.00 408.30 991.70
Total Undistributed Expenditures -Speech/
Occupational Therapy, Physical Therapy &
Related Services 100.500.00 15.000.00 115.500.00 113.409.60 2.090.40
Undistributed Expenditures -Other
Support Services Students - Extraordinary
Related Services:
Salaries .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
Purchased Professional and Educational
Services 181.000.00 (68.800.00) 112.200.00 95.276.65 16.923.35
Total Undistributed Expenditures -Other
Support Services Students - Extraordinary
Related Services 181.000.00 (68.800.00) 112.200.00 95.276.65 16.923.35
Undistributed Expenditures - Child Study
Team Services:
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 82,700.00 1,500.00 84,200.00 74,886.50 9,313.50
Salaries of Secretarial & Clerical Asst. 12,000.00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .00
Purchased Professional and Educational
Services 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 450.00 3,050.00
Other Purchased Professional &
Technical Services 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 2,025.22 474.78
Supplies and Materials 4.500.00 (500.00) 4.000.00 2.205.67 _1.794.33
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Child
Study Team Services 105.200.00 1.000.00 106.200.00 91.567.39  14.632.61
Undistributed Expenditures - Educational
Media Services/School Library:
Supplies and Materials 12.900.00 (6.500.00) 6.400.00 2.606.48 3.793.52
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Educational
Media Services/School Library 12.900.00 (6.500.00) 6.400.00 2.606.48 3.793.52
Undistributed Expenditures - Instructional
Staff Training Services:
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) _15.000.00 (4.525.00) 10.475.00 441.00 10.034.00
Total Undistributed Expenditures -
Instructional Staff Training Services 15.000.00 (4.525.00) 10.475.00 441.00 10.034.00

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original
and final.
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Exhibit C-1
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT (Continued)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual

EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Current Expense (Continued):
Undistributed Expenditures - Support
Services - General Administration:

Salaries 139,300.00 .00 139,300.00 138,799.92 500.08
Legal Services 11,000.00 (3,000.00) 8,000.00 1,635.00 6,365.00
Audit Fees 12,350.00 .00 12,350.00 12,350.00 .00
Architectural/Engineering Services 5,000.00 (5,000.00) .00 .00 .00
Other Purchased Professional Services 6,500.00 .00 6,500.00 3.840.00 2.660.00
Purchased Technical Services 15,000.00 8,000.00 23,000.00 3,295.00 19,705.00
Communications/Telephone 9,500.00 .00 9,500.00 9,178.52 321.48
BOE Other Purchased Services 7,500.00 (2,420.00) 5,080.00 4,180.00 900.00
Miscellaneous Purchased Services
(400-500 series) 10,000.00 8,000.00 18,000.00 9,161.71 8,838.29
General Supplies 4,000.00 4,000.00 8,000.00 250.00 7,750.00
Miscellaneous Expenditures 6,300.00 3,500.41 9,800.41 7,438.11 2,362.30
BOE Membership Dues and Fees 5.100.00 .00 5.100.00 4.433.00 667.00
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Support
Services - General Administration 231.550.00 13.080.41 244.630.41 194.561.26 _50.069.15

Undistributed Expenditures - Support
Services - School Administration:
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Asst. 70,620.00 5,000.00 75,620.00 73.926.80 1,693.20

Supplies and Materials 5,000.00 1,000.00 6,000.00 4.421.33 1,578.67
Other Objects 10.000.00 4.494.00 14.494.00 _14.295.37 198.63
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Support
Services - School Administration 85.620.00 10.494.00 96.114.00 _92.643.50 _ 3.470.50
Undistributed Expenditures - Central Services:
Salaries 118,250.00 .00 118,250.00 117,954.96 295.04
Purchased Professional Services 5,760.00 5,500.00 11,260.00 925.00 10,335.00
Supplies and Materials 5,100.00 4,500.00 9,600.00 1,549.00 8,051.00
Miscellaneous Expenditures 5.100.00 3.500.00 8.600.00 1.932.49 6.667.51
Total Undistributed Expenditures -
Central Services 134.210.00 13.500.00 147.710.00 122.361.45 _25.348.55

Undistributed Expenditures - Administration
Info Technology:

Purchased Technical Services 21.000.00 .00 21.000.00 16.464.00 4.536.00
Total Undistributed Expenditures -
Administration Info Technology 21.000.00 .00 21.000.00 16.464.00 4.536.00

Undistributed Expenditures - Required
Maintenance for School Facilities:

Salaries 40,000.00 .00 40,000.00 23,036.00 16,964.00

Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Ser. 10.000.00 (4.000.00) 6.000.00 200.00 5.800.00
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Required

Maintenance for School Facilities 50.000.00 (4.000.00) 46.000.00 23.236.00 _22.764.00

Undistributed Expenditures - Other

Operations & Maintenance of Plant Services:
Salaries 137,500.00 (15,000.00) 122,500.00 117,244.63 5,255.37

Salaries of Non-Instructional Aides 7,300.00 .00 7,300.00 7,227.63 72.37

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original
and final. 46



Exhibit C-1

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT (Continued)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
Variance
Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Current Expense (Continued):
Undistributed Expenditures - Other Operations
& Maintenance of Plant Services (Continued):
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Ser. 31,500.00 (5,000.00) 26,500.00 17,568.51 8,931.49
Other Purchased Property Services 5,500.00 .00 5,500.00 4,225.48 1,274.52
Insurance 44,000.00 (10,000.00) 34,000.00  32,845.00 1,155.00
General Supplies 17,500.00 .00 17,500.00 13,801.00 3,699.00
Energy - Heat & Electricity 117,000.00 (7,700.00) 109,300.00 109,296.67 393
Other Objects 19.500.00 (7.200.00) 12.300.00 8.113.69 _ 4.186.31
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Other
Operations & Maintenance of Plant
Services 379.800.00 (44.900.00) 334.900.00 _310.322.61 _24.577.39
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Operations
& Maintenance of Plant Services: 429.800.00 (48.900.00) 380.900.00 333.558.61 _ 47.341.39
Undistributed Expenditures - Student
Transportation Services:
Contracted Services (Other than Between
Home and School) - Vendors 21,500.00 (5,500.00) 16,000.00 14,708.00 1,292.00
Contracted Services (Between Home and
School) - Joint Agreements 140,000.00 (23,500.00) 116,500.00 116,267.03 232.97
Contracted Services (Special Ed. Students)-
Vendors 10,000.00 (10,000.00) .00 .00 .00
Contracted Services (Special Ed. Students)-
Joint Agreements 240.000.00  (106.500.00) 133.500.00 _ 133.177.87 322.13
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Student
Transportation Services 411.500.00 (145.500.00) 266.000.00 264.152.90 1.847.10
Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits:
Social Security Contributions 66,000.00 (10,000.00) 56,000.00  48,871.30  7,128.70
Other Retirement Contributions - Regular 45,000.00 .00 45,000.00 34,933.00 10,067.00
Unemployment Compensation 45,000.00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .00
Workmen’s Compensation 40,000.00 (8,000.00) 32,000.00  29,329.58 2,670.42
Health Benefits 755,000.00 (6,000.00) 749,000.00 639,514.74 109,485.26
Tuition Reimbursement 7.000.00 .00 7.000.00 5.400.00 1.600.00
Total Unallocated Benefits - Employee
Benefits: 958.000.00 (24.000.00) 934.000.00 _ 803.048.62 130.951.38
On-Behalf TPAF Pension Contributions -
(Non-Budgeted) .00 .00 .00 7,548.00  (7,548.00)
On-Behalf TPAF OPEB (Post Retirement
Medical Contribution) - (Non-Budgeted) .00 .00 00 141,765.00 (141,765.00)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security
Contributions - (Non-Budgeted) .00 .00 .00 _170.097.85 (170.097.85)
Total On-Behalf - Contributions .00 .00 .00 _319.410.85 (319.410.85)
Total Personal Services Employee Benefits _958.000.00 (24.00.00) 934.000.00 1.122.459.47 (188.459.47)
Total Undistributed Expenditures 5.313.214.00 (151.446.45) 5.161.767.55 4.953.425.97 208.341.58
Total General Current Expense 7.694.314.00 (268.934.70) 7.425.379.30 7.066.109.38 359.269.92

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original
and final. 47



Exhibit C-1

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT (Completed)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
Variance
Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Capital Outlay:
Interest Deposit to Capital Reserve 300.00 .00 300.00 .00 300.00
Equipment
Undistributed Expenditures:
Instruction 5,000.00 (5,000.00) .00 .00 .00
Central Services 10,000.00 (4,500.00) 5,500.00 .00 5,500.00
Operation of Plant Services 45.000.00 (20.000.00) 25.000.00 .00 _ 25.000.00
Total Equipment 60.000.00 (29.500.00) 30.500.00 .00 _ 30.500.00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:
Legal Services 2,000.00 (2,000.00) .00 .00 .00
Other Purchased Professional & Technical Sve.  8,000.00 (6,000.00) 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00
Construction Services 40.000.00 (35.000.00) 5.000.00 .00 5.000.00
Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Services 50.000.00 (43.000.00) 7.000.00 .00 7.000.00
Total Capital Outlay 110.300.00 (72.500.00) 37.800.00 .00 37.800.00
Total Expenditures 7.804.614.00 (341.434.70) 7.463.179.30 7.066.109.38 _ 397.069.92
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (1.071.400.00) (262.833.30) (1.334.233.30) (498.740.11) 835.493.19
Other Financing Sources/(Uses):
Operating Transfers In/(Out):
Transfer to Food Service Fund - Board
Contribution (3.600.00) .00 (3.600.00) .00 3.600.00
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) (3.600.00) .00 (3.600.00) .00 3.600.00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other
Financing Sources Over/(Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (1,075,000.00) (262,833.30) (1,337,833.30) (498,740.11) 839,093.19
Fund Balances - July 1 2.438.111.71 .00 2.438.111.71 2.438.111.71 .00
Fund Balances - June 30 $1.363.111.71  (262.833.30) 1.100.278.41 1.939.371.60 _ 839.093.19
Recapitulation:
Reserve for Encumbrances 6,472.29
Capital Reserve 11,067.97
Tuition Reserve 100,000.00
Reserve for Excess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures 568,284.73
Reserve for Excess Surplus 717,793.34
Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures 190,928.27
Unrestricted Fund Balance 344.825.00
1,939,371.60
Reconciliation to Governmental Funds Statement (GAAP):
Last Two State Aid Payments not recognized on GAAP Basis (199.607.00)

Fund Balance per Governmental Funds (GAAP) $1.739.764.60

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original

and final.
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Exhibit C-1b
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) - Education Stabilization Fund (ESF)
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
REVENUES:
Federal Sources:

Equalization Aid - ARRA ESF .00 275.185.00 275.185.00 275.185.00 .00
Total Federal Sources .00 275.185.00 275.185.00 275.185.00 .00
Total Revenues .00 275.185.00 275.185.00 275.185.00 .00

EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:

Regular Programs - Instruction:

Kindergarten - Salaries of Teachers .00 44,549.00 44,549.00 44,549,00 .00

Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers .00 135,807.00 135,807.00 135,807.00 .00

Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers .00 44.549.00 44.549.00 44.549.00 .00
Total Regular Programs - Instruction 00  224.905.00 224.905.00  224.905.00 .00
Resource Room/Resource Center:

Salaries of Teachers .00 50.280.00 50.280.00 50.280.00 .00
Total Resource Room/Resource Center .00 50,280.00 50.280.00 50.280.00 .00
Total Expenditures .00 275.185.00 275.185.00 275.185.00 .00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
Fund Balance, July 1 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
Fund Balance, June 30 $ .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original
and final.
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Exhibit C-1c¢
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) - Government Services Fund (GSF)
General Fund _
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
REVENUES:
Federal Sources:

Equalization Aid - ARRA GSF .00 10.653.00 10.653.00 10.653.00 .00
Total Federal Sources .00 10.653.00 10.653.00 10.653.00 .00
Total Revenues .00 10.653.00 10.653.00 10.653.00 .00

EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:

Resource Room/Resource Center:

Salaries of Teachers .00 10.653.00 10.653.00 10.653.00 .00

Total Resource Room/Resource Center .00 10.653.00 10.653.00 10.653.00 .00

Total Expenditures .00 10.653.00 10.653.00 10.653.00 .00

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Fund Balance, July 1 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Fund Balance, June 30 $ .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original
and final.
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Special Revenue Fund

REVENUES:
State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased Professional-Technical Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Tuition
General Supplies

Total Instruction

Support Services
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial & Clerical Asst.
Purchased Professional Services
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Supplies & Materials

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services:
Instructional Equipment

Total Facilities Acquisition & Construction
Services

Total Expenditures
Total Outflows
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures & Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Exhibit C-2

Variance

Original Final Final
Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00
211.000.00 247.523.00 458.523.00 446.549.51 11.973.49
211.000.00 247.523.00 458.523.00 446.549.51 11.973.49
81,450.00 24,321.00 105,771.00 105,771.00 .00
.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 .00
.00 21,116.00 21,116.00 19,741.93 1,374.07
.00 5,419.00 5,419.00 5,419.00 .00
11,500.00 §3,500.00 95.000.00 95,000.00 .00
.00 52.901.00 52.901.00 48.301.58 4.599.42
92.950.00 203.257.00 296.207.00 290.233.51 5.973.49
80,000.00 .00 80,000.00 80,000.00 .00
16,500.00 .00 16,500.00 16,500.00 .00
1,100.00 4,900.00 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00
20,000.00 39,816.00 59,816.00 59,816.00 .00
450.00 (450.00) .00 .00 .00
118.050.00 44.266.00 162.316.00 156.316.00 6.000.00
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00
211.000.00 247.523.00 458.523.00 446.549.51 11.973.49
211.000.00 247.523.00 458.523.00 446.549.51 11.973.49
$ .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original

and final.
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NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




Exhibit C-3
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Budget-to-GAAP Reconciliation
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues
and Expenditures

General Fund Special Revenue Fund
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) “revenues” from the
budgetary comparison schedules 6,567,369.27 446,549.51
Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized.
Encumbrances, June 30, 2009 .00 .00
Encumbrances, June 30, 2010 (.00) (8,794.33)
State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes. 187,188.00 .00
State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year. (199.607.00) (.00)
Total revenues as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds. 6.554.950.27 437.755.18
Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total outflows” from
the budgetary comparison schedule 7,066,109.38 446,549.51
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial reporting purposes.
Encumbrances, June 30, 2009 .00 .00
Encumbrances, June 30, 2010 (.00) (8,794.33)
Transfers to and from other funds are presented as
outflows of budgetary resources but are not
expenditures for financial reporting purposes.
Net transfers (outflows) to general fund. 00 .00
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds. $7.066.109.38 437.755.18
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or
major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
DETAIL STATEMENT

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and equipment
purchases other than those financed by proprietary funds.
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Capital Projects Fund

Exhibit F-2

Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

Revenue and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Proceeds and Transfers
Transfer From Capital Reserve
Transfer From Capital Outlay
Interest Earned

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Legal Services
Other Purchased Professional Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:

Transfer Out - Debt Service Fund

Total Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Uses
Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance - July 1

Fund Balance - June 30
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.00
.00
.00
1.558.98

_1.558.95

.00
.00
81.397.02
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81.397.02
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(79.838.04)

(1.558.98)
(1.558.98)

(81,397.02)
138.292.59
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Capital Projects Fund

Exhibit F-2a

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
Additions and Alterations to the Woodrow Wilson Elementary School

From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Period Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond Proceeds and Transfers 9,772,000.00 .00 9,772,000.00  9,772,543.00
Transfer From Capital Reserve 350,000.00 .00 350,000.00 350,000.00
Transfer From Capital Outlay .00 .00 .00 .00
Total Revenues 10.122.000.00 .00 10.122.000.00 10.122.543.00
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Legal Services 9,848.45 .00 9,848.45 10,000.00
Other Purchased Professional Services 1,427,799.34 .00 1,427,799.34 1,500,000.00
Construction Services 8.546.059.62 81.397.02 _8.627.456.64 _8.612.543.00
Total Expenditures 9.983.707.41 81.397.02 10.065.104.43 10.122.543.00
Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures $__138.292.59 (81.397.02) 56.895.57 .00

Additional Project Information:

25-3500-060-06-1000, 25-3500-060-06-2200,
25-3500-060-06-3000

Project Numbers

Grant Date/Letter of Notification 11/11/2005
Bond Authorization/Referendum Date 12/13/2005
Bonds Authorized $9,772,573.00
Bonds Issued $9,772,000.00

Original Project Authorized Cost $10,122,543.00
Additional Authorized Cost $.00
Revised Authorized Cost $10,122,543.00
Percentage Increase Over

Original Authorized Cost 0%

Percentage Completion 99.4%
Original Target Completion Date September 2008
Revised Target Completion Date December 2010
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the school district for a specific purpose.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the school district as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments and/or other funds.

Student Activity Fund - This agency fund is used to account for student funds held at the schools.

Payroll Fund - This agency fund is used to account for payroll transactions of the school district.




NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30,2010

Exhibit H-1

Trust Agency
Total
Unemployment  Student Agency
Compensation _Activity Payroll Fund
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 134,424.92 8,522.86 .01 8,522.87
Accounts Receivable:
Payroll Service Vendor 1,721.86 .00 .00 .00
Interfunds 6.464.11 5.461.45 .00 5.461.45
Total Assets 142.610.89 13.984.31 .01 13.984.32
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable .00 500.00 .00 500.00
Payroll Deductions and
Withholdings .00 .00 01 01
Due to Student Groups .00 13.484.31 .00  13.484.31
Total Liabilities .00 13.984.31 .01  13.984.32
NET ASSETS:
Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims and Other Purposes 142.610.89
Total Net Assets $142.610.89
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
Student Activity Agency Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

Balance Cash Cash
July 1, 2009 Receipts Disbursements
Woodrow Wilson
School 7.849.05 31.413.25 30.739.44
Total $7.849.05 31.413.25 30.739.44

58

Exhibit H-3

Balance
June 30,2010



Exhibit H-4
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements

Pavroll Agency Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1,2009 Receipts  Disbursements June 30,2010
Payroll Deductions
and Withholdings .01 1.281.467.43 1.281.467.43 .01
Total $ .01 1.281.467.43 1.281.467.43 .01
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term Debt schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the general long-term liabilities
of the school district. This includes serial bonds outstanding.
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Exhibit I-3
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Debt Service Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

Variance
Original Budget Final Positive (Negative)
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy 334,300.00 .00  334,300.00  334,300.00 .00
State Sources:
Debt Service Aid 210.733.00 .00  210.733.00  210.733.00 .00
Total State Sources 545.033.00 .00  545.033.00  545.033.00 .00
Total Revenues 545.033.00 .00 545.033.00  545.033.00 .00
EXPENDITURES:
Regular Debt Service:
Interest 367,613.00 00  367,613.00  367,612.57 43
Redemption of Principal 350.000.00 .00  350.000.00  350.000.00 .00
Total Regular Debt Service 717.613.00 00  717.613.00 717.612.57 43
Total Expenditures 717.613.00 .00 717.613.00 717.612.57 43
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Under Expenditures (172.580.00) .00 (172.580.00) (172.579.57) 43
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In:
Interest Earned in Capital
Projects Fund .00 .00 .00 1.558.98 1.558.98
Total Other Financing Sources .00 .00 .00 1.558.98 1.558.98
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Under
Expenditures (172,580.00) .00 (172,580.00) (171,020.59) 1,559.41
Fund Balance - July 1 178.476.42 .00 178.476.42 178.476.42 .00
Fund Balance - June 30 $_ 5.896.42 .00 5.896.42 7.455.83 1.559.41
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Neptune City Board of Education

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

Exhibit J-20

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Unaudited

Company Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
NJSBAIG Property Blanket Building & Contents-
Replacement Cost Values $ 10,490,600 $ 5,000
NJSBAIG Flood/Earthquake 10,000,000
50,000,000 ag 500,000
NJSBAIG Pollution Liability 1,000,000 occ/
2,000,000 agg 5,000
NJSBAIG General Liability
-Each Occurrence 6,000,000 -
-General Aggregate 6,000,000 -
-Personal Injury 1,000,000 -
-Fire Damage 100,000 -
-Medical Expense Limit
(Excluding students) 10,000 100
-Employee Benefit Liability 1,000,000 1,000
-Aggregate 1,000,000 -
NJSBAIG Automotive Coverage
-Combined Single Limit 6,000,000 -
-Hired/Non-Owned 1,000,000 -
-Uninsured & Underinsured 1,000,000 -
NJSBAIG Inland Marine
-Electronic Data Processing Equipment 100,000 1,000
NJSBAIG Crime Coverage
-Employee Dishonesty with Faithful
Performance 25,000 500
-Theft, Disappearance & Destruction
Inside and Out 25,000 500
NJSBAIG Boiler & Machinery Coverage 100,000,000 1,000
NJSBAIG Catastrophe Liability Coverage
-Occurrence Limit 25,000,000
-Aggregate Limit 25,000,000

Source: District Records

-Retained Limit
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Neptune City Board of Education Exhibit J-20
INSURANCE SCHEDULE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Unaudited
Company Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
NJSBAIG Board of Education
-Liability Wrongful Acts Coverage
Each Loss $ 6,000,000 $ 5,000
Aggregate 6,000,000 - 5,000
Bollinger Student Accident - Voluntary Program
NJSBAIG Fidelity Bonds
-Treasurer of School Monies 200,000
-School Business Administrator/
Board Secretary 5,000
NJSBAIG Worker's Compensation
-Covered Payrolls-Professional 2,600,000 N/A
-Covered Payrolls-Non-Professional 150,000 N/A
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ALVINO & SHECHTER, L.L.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
110 Fortunato Place
Neptune, New Jersey 07753-3767

VINCENT J. ALVINO, CPA, PSA Phone: (732) 922-4222
ALLEN B. SHECHTER, CPA, RMA, PSA Fax: (732) 922-4533
Mem]:ler

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
New Jersey Society of Certified Public Accountants
PCPS of the AICPA Division of CPA Firms

Exhibit K-1

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Neptune City School District
County of Monmouth, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the Board of Education of the Neptune City School District in the County
of Monmouth as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2010.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Neptune City Board of Education's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Neptune City Board
of Education’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Neptune City Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Neptune City Board of Education's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
reportable instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government and State
Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State
of New Jersey.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of the Neptune City Board of Education,
the New Jersey State Department of Education and other federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Llcensed Publlc Schoo] Accountant
No. 2183
ALVINO & SHECHTER, L.L.C.

November 29, 2010
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Exhibit K-2

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Neptune City School District
County of Monmouth, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Neptune City School District, in the
County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State
Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal and state programs for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Neptune City Board of Education's major federal and state programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to each of its major federal and state programs is the responsibility of the Neptune City Board of Education's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Neptune City Board of Education's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients
of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey
OMB's Circular 04-04, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Neptune City Board of Education's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Neptune City Board of Education's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Neptune City School District, in the County of Monmouth,

State of New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the Neptune City School District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to major federal and state programs. In planning and performing
our audit, we considered Neptune City Board of Education's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB’s
Circular 04-04, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Neptune City School
District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there isareasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of the Neptune City Board of
Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

No. 2183
ALVINO & SHECHTER, L.L.C.

November 29, 2010

87



“a{upayas suf jo pod (erfape ur e 2UmSISSY [T U SpItay jo i T J0 sanpaiag o) saopy Ful oy
= TGmea  Weoso T Tworcws LRI TLSIre TZr 08T 063) PR [aunL g (sapag (#0],
BEEGL L [FFRTT0] [N QLELIIL G8EOE] TrTiTe) pung aspdsmug oy,
1T86kS [Ty FVOES HOLLL 1FILE'RY WViN SE5°01 R0 AR [ |
(So'sLy'K) (6r'5L6'c8) PELEKLS ol VUL 6KSLE'SS VI sssol tueson YouR'y jooyag |uiojuy
1TrL [{E473] V0L BVIL ST ViN 5501 i EEIE [0S
(TLEsr) (rorere's) TEGHTY 0105/ GWIL  FUERLD ViN 5501 uridon| g epg
(6B E0E"1) GREOE' GIVOE/D BOVLL EIILTS WIN 055701 B0 BONRGUIEIC) Pov]
BE6L o19es) R oljois GO/IEL BSWSIE VIN 055701 teiBas] ueHqUIsIC oo
cpung esticleaugy
unjjeanpzg jo uanianlag se)s gEnog-posigg
aanymagaily Jo puaagandag 57y
66 K609 [CETIRE] IS GrS ovP) [T [k (00°E00°18] pung aneaaay fepadg o,
Tooear s ToeaL 11 o1es 606 DOEOL'Y 0100SE VHUV  T60h8 1005303 ‘6] MEd VEH'CTT = VIV
Tre6s'0l (oogecoen) (8$'BELEIT) 017168 LW16 OOBEEDEL DIDOSE VHIV 165'v8 Aupndany alsug 'f) Heg 'y Vaay
00°L6L' | wo'eeL') GVIER VG DO6RES 60005 Lt LT [ooussatd g ueg VI
(posoz'1) {o0'szata) 000TE'r ol/1e8 616 05T 01005 Ld LTOVE oonpsRag g ueg VI
00TI6 P (00°Z96" v i) 61 9 BWlG OOL9FEST 60005T Lt LTOHE tenilagg i ‘g wed VEA]
(ooseT’ie) (oogLr'asy) OUBE6'FTL Ol/1E/8 GG DELI'9SI 01005€ Lt LIOEE amridayg atswg] g und VEA]
05T’ foosen ozt (ooriset) GOV1E/8 WG 0015 GOOOSEEION VORI sanolensy speoyag aasg Snig) 'y e Al 3L
LOPLE o919’} (g6'1¥0) oIes aVIG 0091El OI00SEHION VORI HE spoonjag sany Fany "y pug ‘AL 3Ly
(oreie) (oorL16) 01/16r8 GG OOELG OIOOSEEFION XRIEWE 2 L yBnang ), nonesnpy Susauepe g weg
00'0sy0l (oo'osg'ol) GV1ER W6 DOITSSE EOODSEEION VIR Janafue Bunies | jediang g sagpeal Yy g
00's15've) 00S1S'vE) ol 66 DOSISE DIDSEAION WISz Bupma, [hiouiy 3 J0oraL W U ‘1] A(1LL
(Do's61vE) (o sa1’red anes 6116 0SEI'PE O100SE VHHY 63008 VUL VIV
00SLE'T DIVEPTET 0058 (oorerz'zz) 6OV £/ BOIIG O'IRE'SY GO00SE 6TION 010Es sannluny v e '] 3L
(001 k0'06) (o0 1 ro'oa) OI1EE BTG 0014006 0L00ST I 01 PR VR A
i sy (nsedy
TOOSTETRD DOELRSEC pun g [erauas oy,
Tootsgol)  oomgol 010§ GOUL  DUESTOI ViN L6EYE pry uonEzpenba 450 - VMY
(oose1'sL) 00'581'SLT 01069 VL OD'SBI'SLE ViIN POEE pry vonezipmby 453 - ViHY
e uauary
wopEang Jo pustgsedagg e g yEnoay-posseg
wofiEaRpy Jo jusuplag 5
I L T e B B e s R i i e T v EREor
oyang PRakga SRmosay HEL Joud Jo Kiwiadpng L] (ranepe) ayang] pasagag) iunoay RS TR Y 1l VD Ao s[inan | -ssedpopug [spag
uauee{elayy pEaniuesy 10 werdoy,| TG 10 RID |esapag
T Olog ocsunpweoug R T T T T T T R

GO0 "OE Sun[ 18 soare]eg]

OT0T *0F JUnp Papud a3y, ISk ) 10
SPARAY [EI3P3] 10 saanjipuailxg Jo appayag
JONLLSIA TOOHDS ALLD ANNLIAN

£ A=y
¥ 3INATHIS

88



“apnpanas s jo wed (@30 e 0 0ULISISSY [RIDUELL] puE SpIEmy jo Iy Jo

npaifag o) sajop) Jurkued EUTH

EFOIEH08'1 00°L09°661 » SUSIL Toozes o0 (EXO1E608 rzeress I (LeLrroL18) SAUESIFSY [WauEUL] ARG MmO,

.

S5560°E . oo (857560°C) BOCLET [(TRFTY] g asvidsagg oo

. [H (05'¥5) GOMES  BOAIL 01°56T 960-09EE-010-001-60 (annyg g weddos jse)quag [ooyag [EuoEy
0¥Ler . (osee) (09Ler) orsie OIES 60N 09Lkb 960-09EE-010-001-01 (asuys apng) weios 1supaig (ooys [euoleN

. 069TK (o6 ozr) GOMES  BVIL  BEOTKT LIG-09EE-010-001-60 (2ieys aerg) uaBouyg yaun] jooipg [WuoleN
WLK'T . (e (86°Lv9'D) 95"9EN'T OLOE 6L BELI'E LYG-O9EE-010-001-01 (2umyg aneig) unBosy yaunr] ooy [uuoleN

¥ “pun) asiudiug

. aumypnady jo puawpedag 21e)g

.

OESL'01T » 00 CELDIT 0L0ES 6L DOELL0IT L10-0T1§-PEO-S6E-01 113d4y, pry 3a1ag 1990

H pun) 3aag 3

.

» SOTSICT SOEIL LoD BIIL S9SITT £S0-0215-KE0-S6I-LO uojjeanpg J213eieyy

) ipunyg Inuasay el

.

STLEFSES| DO'LO9 661 . TwossTon TCeiarses 1) FEOIE LY (TR punj [R13630) |E10),

.

. LV BLTS (5 Tear] 600519 BOVIIL LE199L ZO0S605-PED-Sb1-60 SUOIGLINGTY AILINJAG [LIB0G |V, pasinguiy
sE'La0'oLl . (80°£91°8) (sg'L60'neL1) LLPES' 191 GINEM 0L E6095'8LL Z00°5605-PE0-561-01 SUBLINGUINO]) ALND3g 130G VL pasnquisy Ty
00sIL v . (oorsos'1el) DO°SIL 1K 01OES  6ONIIL 00§aL’ ipl 100-5605-FE0-564-01 AU0D JUAHANIY 1504 AVAL MR b0 00
00'8rS'L . loorgrs'e) 00°8ps'L 0009 B 00°8kS'L 900-§605-FEO-S61-01 SUOIIMQLINGT) OIS Y L J[WEE U0

. 00'BZ6'0LI (oogze'oLt) 600E/9  ROVI/L 00°¥ZE 0L CLIOZ15-FEG-001-60 PV sis03) uoneanpg jusadg Guupeoeiyy
00°ST8FE . (00'sza'vs) {borses've) 010 6ONLIL 0U'SER'Y6 ELOZLS-HEC-001-01 Py 1500 uoneanps upadg Asipaoenxg
00'1LL'Y 6E'BI8 . oieL'y) 00 ILLY 0L0E9  BOMIL O0ILL'Y LLOOTIS-FEO-S6I-01 Pry vonEInpg Jnpy
QOLOG'LY ETORD'01 . (o0 Lo6'c) DO°LO6'LY 0I0Le  BIL 00LO6'LY F10°0Z1S-PEC-S64-01 Py uopuodsued |
00°89E'1 1T 0L 0z1'0E . (orgoe'11z) 00BIE'N1T OLOE  6ON/L D0'R9E'IIT 680-0Z1§-FE0-S61-01 PV [Ea0faeD) nojeanpy [noadg
OOLIG'LY SO'980°L » (00°LI6'LY) DOLIG'LY 0LDES 0L 00Li6'Le YRO-0TS-PEO-SHI-01 Py Aiunaag
00'6STBFE £ 1KS" 151 . (00682 6v8} 00°68T'6¥8 0INDS ML 0068T'6HS BLO-0Z15-FE0-SHI-01 Py uenezgenby

“ﬁ--h un.-u-uu

uoeanpy jo juawpsdag 3y

i puati A|qeala0ay ouen AqeEg [ETTEE SN g saunjipuady) Panaaay Jnowy e ] (iEAEaay say) ol [T} unowy daquingy BTN T e
Imoy Kuyadipng o)ang punjiaiu) Ssunoaay) SE2 ) Joly) jo Kapaidpng sy (sanojepm ) o 3ng Y O T PRy 129fid ag
SALRIAINT sy waukuday anodueny pauajag 40 o 20 gy
pauzjag faunsnipy
OWaAW 10T "0F 3unf ye auwjeg T 600T OCdunp e sauEien
D10T 'E AUNE PIpua Juay [¥3514 3y J0)
M g IUEPSISEY [BIUELL] RIS JO san)puadxg Jo 3npayas
4 FN0IN0S

AINULSIA TOOHDIS ALID INNLIAN



Exhibit K-5
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Awards and Financial Assistance
June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include federal and state award
activity of the Board of Education, Neptune City School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board
basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal
awards and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedules of expenditures
of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of
accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Notes 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of
accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis
of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the Board’s basic financial statements. The information
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas
for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception of the
revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.4. 18A:22-
44.2. For GAAP purposes that payment is not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and
recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payment
in the current budget year, consistent with V.J.5.4. 18A:22-4.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $(12,419.00) for the general fund and
$(8,794.33) for the special revenue fund. See Note A for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual
basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the
Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund 285,838.00 1,583,068.85 1,868,906.85
Special Revenue Fund 437,755.18 .00 437,755.18
Debt Service Fund .00 210,733.00 210,733.00
Food Service Fund 71.873.11 3.095.58 74.968.69

Total Awards & Financial Assistance $795.466.29 1,796.897.43 2.592.363.72
NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the related federal and state financial
reports.

NOTES. OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value received and current
year distributions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension and Post Retirement Contributions represents the
amount paid by the state on behalf of the District for the year ended June 30, 2010. TPAF Social Security Contributions
represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members
for the year ended June 30, 2010.
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Report

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Exhibit K-6

Ungqualified

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes no
2) Were significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes none reported
Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted? yes no
Federal Awards
Internal control over compliance:
1) Material weaknesses identified? yes no
2) Were significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes none reported
Type of auditor’s report on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular Letter A-133 (section 510(a)? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.394 ARRA - ESF - Equalization Aid
84.397 ARRA - GSF - Equalization Aid
84.027 [.D.E.A. Part B Basic
84.173 I.D.E.A. Part B Preschool
8§4.391 ARRA - LD.E.A. Part B Basic
84.392 ARRA - .LD.E.A. Part B Preschool

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and B programs: $300.000.00

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

yes X no
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Exhibit K-6
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT (continued)

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Section I - Summaryv of Auditor's Report (continued)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and B programs: $300.000.00
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

2) Were significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with NJOMB Circular Letter 04-047 yes X no

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program

10-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

NONE

Section III - State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE
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Exhibit K-7
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

There were no prior year findings since all areas of State financial assistance for the prior year were found to be in
compliance.
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